
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

May 6, 2019  7:00 P.M. 

Call to Order – Mayor Feather 

Moment of Silence 

Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Approval of the Agenda

2. Approval of the Consent Agenda
a. Approval of the Minutes

• Regular Board Minutes April 1, 2019
b. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet)
c. Financial Reports

3. Citizen Comments (All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of
minutes with other citizens)

4. Guests and Presentations
a. Civitan Group – Sign outside of Town Hall
b. Granite Quarry Athletic Club

I. Discussion

5. Town Manager’s Update – 10 minutes
a. Project updates

6. Old Business
a. Committee Updates – 10 minutes

• Parks and Recreation – Aldermen LaFevers and Cress
• Revitalization – Aldermen Costantino and Linker

Town of Granite Quarry Page 1 Printed on 5/8/2019



b. FY18/19 Paving & Repair Project

7. New Business and Action Items – 25 minutes
a. RESOLUTION 2019-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF
GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH DEX IMAGING,
INC FOR THE LEASE OF A COPIER FOR USE IN TOWN HALL IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $14,384.79 OVER 63 MONTHS

b. Storage of Manure adjacent to Granite Commons

c. Realtor Agreement – 316 S. Main Street

d. Budget Amendment Request #15

Motion to approve Budget Amendment #15 as presented.

e. Budget Amendment Request #16

Motion to approve Budget Amendment #16 as presented.

f. Budget Amendment Request #17

Motion to approve Budget Amendment #17, and to order the Veterans
Monument as presented at a cost of $6,564.

g. Request to Dispose of Property – Chief Cook

h. Set Date for Budget Workshop

Tuesday, May 14th @ 2:00 P.M. – 5:00 P.M.
Wednesday, May 15th @ 2:00 P.M. – 5:00 P.M.

i. Board Appointment

Lindsey Eller –  PERC Committee
Motion to appoint Lindsey Eller to the PERC Committee

j. Proclamation – National Police Week – May 12 - 18

k. Proclamation – National Day of Prayer

l. Proclamation – Mental Health Month

Town of Granite Quarry Page 2 Printed on 5/8/2019



8. Board Comments 
 

9. Mayor’s Notes – Announcements and Date Reminders 
 
a. CCOG Executive Board Meeting – Wednesday, May 8th @ 6:15 P.M. 
b. Litter Sweep North Carolina – Friday, May 10th 1:00 P.M. – 3:00 P.M. 
c. Planning Board Meeting – Monday, May 13th @ 5:30 P.M. 
d. Power in Partnership Breakfast – Thursday, May 16th @ 7:30 A.M. @ 

Trinity Oaks. R.S.V.P. to Clerk by May 8th.  
e. Revitalization Team Meeting – Tuesday, May 18th @ 3:30 P.M. 
f. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting – Monday, May 20th @ 5:00 P.M. 
g. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO Meeting – Wednesday, May 22nd @ 5:30 

P.M. 
h. Town Hall Offices Closed – Monday, May 27th Memorial Day 
i. Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting – Monday, June 3rd @ 7:00 P.M. 
 

10. Adjournment  
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 3 Printed on 5/8/2019



TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, April 1, 2019 

Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Alderman John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, and Alderman 
Kim Cress 

Attended Remotely via Conference Call:  Mayor Pro Tem Jim LaFevers 

Staff:  Mr. Larry Smith – Interim Town Manager, Ms. Tanya Word – Town Clerk/HR Officer, 
Ms. Aubrey Smith – Deputy Clerk/Finance/HR Analyst, Chief Jason Hord – Fire 
Chief/Maintenance Supervisor, Ms. Shelly Shockley – Finance Officer/Planning 
Coordinator/Events Administrator, Mr. Steve Blount – Town Planner, Chief Mark Cook – Police 
Chief, Mr. Chip Short – Town Attorney 

Guests:  There were three guests present. 

1. Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Moment of Silence:  Mayor Feather opened the meeting with a moment of silence.

3. Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Feather led the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Approval of the Agenda:

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve the agenda with the March 4, 2019
Board Minutes, February 22, 2019 Retreat Minutes and Financial Reports pulled and an
addition of the Village at Granite Bond Discussion added to the Manager’s Report. Alderman
Cress seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.

5. Approval of the Consent Agenda:

a. Approval of the Minutes
• Regular Board Minutes March 4, 2019- pulled for changes, added back as an

action in 8c.
• Board of Aldermen Retreat Minutes February 22, 2019- pulled for changes,

added back as an action in 8c.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 4 Printed on 5/8/2019



b. Department Reports 
c. Financial Reports-pulled for discussion, added back with Board’s approval in 8c. (see 

9d for discussion) 
 

ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers made a motion to accept the consent agenda less the 
items pulled.  Alderman Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
6. Citizen Comments:  There were no citizen comments. 
 
7. Guest Presentations:  There were no guest presentations. 
 
8. Town Manager’s Update 
 

a. Project updates  
Mr. Smith asked Chief Hord to speak to the Board regarding an event that took place 
the morning of Monday, April 1, 2019. 
 
Chief Hord stated that he worked with the new principal at Granite Quarry Elementary 
for Rowan-Salisbury Schools’ Community Involvement Day. Teams made up of high 
school, middle school and elementary school students worked in the nature trails, at the 
Civic Park and at Town Hall. 
 
Mr. Smith spoke about the Town Goal spreadsheet in the packet and progress on the 
goals. Project work plans for major items will continue to be forwarded to the Board. 

 
b. Special Events 

• Easter Egg Hunt – Saturday, April 20th 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. at Civic Park 
• Day in the Garden – Saturday, May 4th 8:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. at Lake Park 

 
Alderman Costantino asked if there would be rain dates for these events. Ms. Shockley 
responded that there would not be rain dates because the day after the Egg Hunt is 
Easter and the Day in the Garden will have live performers. 

 
Mr. Smith stated that the Manager’s Report was in the agenda packet and he would 
answer any questions the Board had. He stated this month he would be working with 
the Clerk on agenda packets to get items added, proofed and have them to the Board 
more quickly.  
 
Mr. Smith informed the Board that $42,087 remains in Powell Bill funds for this year. 

 
c. Approval of Revised Minutes 

Mayor Feather stated that because the Board was given corrected copies of the March 
4, 2019 Board Minutes and February 22, 2019 Retreat Minutes, they could be reviewed 
and adopted or tabled until the next meeting. The Board reviewed the corrections. 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 5 Printed on 5/8/2019



ACTION: Alderman Linker made a motion to approve the revised March 4, 2019 
Board Minutes and February 22, 2019 Retreat Minutes. Alderman Costantino 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Mayor Feather stated that he would also like to discuss a few of the items on the 
Financial Report if the Board would allow. Discussion was added as item 9d. 

 
d. Village at Granite Bond Approval 

Mr. Blount passed out a handout regarding the improvements bond for the Village at 
Granite project. The project developer is LGI. This is a follow-up to the discussion at 
the March 4, 2019 Board Meeting. 
 
Mr. Blount stated that for a traditional project after the engineering drawings are 
approved, the developers would build the infrastructure including roads, water-sewer, 
storm sewer, street lights, street signs, etc. Once that is done, approved and accepted, 
they record a final plat. They cannot sell lots without the final plat approval. LGI is 
asking to post a bond in excess of 5 million dollars as an insurance policy in lieu of the 
final plat approval. This is an accepted process according to the Town’s UDO 11.7.5.3. 
The amount is 1.25% in excess of the actual cost determined by their engineers and 
confirmed by the Town’s engineers. Once the bond is accepted, they do have the right 
to request a reduction in the bond amount based on work completed. No reductions 
would be allowed without Board approval. 
 
There was discussion regarding the improvement bond requirements and what the 
requirements for bond reduction would be. 
 
ACTION: Alderman Linker made a motion to accept the proposed bond in lieu of 
completion of the site improvements per Section 11.7.5.3 of the Town’s Uniform 
Development Ordinance for the Village at Granite. Alderman Costantino seconded the 
motion. 
 
Discussion: 
Alderman Costantino asked if there was a timeline for when they expected to start 
selling property. Mr. Blount responded that they were waiting on the final plat 
approval. 
 
Mayor Feather noted text amendments that needed to be made to the wording in the 
UDO including removing the word “Commissioners” from item A. “and approved by 
the County” in item D. 
 
Mayor Feather asked who would make the determination of the cost remaining on the 
project if a reduction was requested. Mr. Blount answered that the request would be 
sent to the Town Engineer for review if it was under the Town’s purview.  
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 6 Printed on 5/8/2019



There was discussion regarding how the amount of the bond was calculated. Mr. Blount 
stated that it was an amount determined by an agreement of the developer’s engineer 
and the Town’s Engineer.  
 
Mayor Feather asked if there was an AIA and Mr. Blount responded that there was a 
detailed spreadsheet with the cost broken down that was reviewed by the engineer, but 
he wasn’t aware whether the spreadsheet was an AIA. Mayor Feather stated that the 
Board was being asked to approve the bond without seeing the information. Mr. Blount 
clarified that the Board was being asked to approve the bond in an amount that was 
determined to be accurate by the Town’s Engineer. 

 
The motion passed 3-1 with Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers opposed. 

 
9. Old Business 

 
a. Discussion of Funding for Sewer Line Project 

There was discussion regarding the funding for the sewer line project. Alderman Linker 
asked what the Town’s cost would be. Mr. Smith responded that it would be $34,725 
assuming the county’s co-operation, which has been received verbally. 

 
Mayor Feather asked about additional costs. Mr. Smith stated that there would be 
professional costs for the engineer and costs for securing the easements.  
 
Mayor Feather added that currently the only action being requested was the approval 
of the grant, but before the project can be started there would have to be a letter from 
the USDA for the capacity and approval by Faith’s Board to tap into the line. 

 
There was discussion regarding whether there was any other alternative. 

 
ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve. Alderman Cress seconded 
the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
b. Committee Updates  

 
i. Revitalization Committee 
Alderman Costantino stated that the Revitalization Committee was in a holding 
process until they receive funding. 

 
ii. Parks and Recreation  
Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers stated that the PERCs Committee planned a walk-
through of the Civic Park at the next meeting to get a consensus of what needs to 
be considered for future works planning. 

 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 7 Printed on 5/8/2019



 
c. Town Manager Process 

Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers stated that he thought it would be helpful to have this process 
completed before the future Board is seated but didn’t feel it was possible with the time 
remaining. 
 
Mayor Feather stated timing ought to be considered. He proposed the process be put 
off until after the new Board was in place. 
 
Alderman Linker stated that he wasn’t in favor of that and wasn’t sure what the election 
cycle had to do with it. He stated that he would propose delaying that decision until 
July 1. 
 
Mayor Feather responded that usually the Board chooses someone they feel 
comfortable with and choosing someone for a new Board could be contentious. 
 
Mayor Feather suggested another thing for the Board to consider was the Interim 
Manager and his availability. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers suggested that Board start the process and take it one step at 
a time. 
 
ACTION: Alderman Linker made the motion to wait until the fiscal year starts July1, 
2019. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-1 with Mayor Pro 
Tem LaFevers opposed. 
 
Mayor Feather asked the Clerk to confirm the quotes close to July. 
 

d. Financial Report 
Mayor Feather asked Ms. Shockley to clarify some items and answer questions 
regarding the Financial Report. 
 
The Town has received 96% of what was estimated to be received for taxes. 
 
After the budget was adopted at the end of last fiscal year, the auditor recommended 
separating solid waste and recycling, but if you combine them, the Town is at 61% of 
expected revenues. 
 
The 401k expense issue has been worked through and Ms. Shockley has updated 
numbers that show between 65% and 78% throughout the departments. Each 
department should be at near 75% at the end of March. 

 
10. New Business & Action Items 
 

a. Boardroom Media  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 8 Printed on 5/8/2019



At its February Planning Retreat, the Board discussed and prioritized upgrading the 
board room’s media equipment.  This goal was assigned a “high priority” rating to 
accomplish. This would include two 70” tv monitors, associated equipment to install 
them as wireless and upgrading the laptop computer assigned to the board room if 
needed. Costs are expected to be between $2,000-$2,500. 

ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve moving forward with the 
board room’s media upgrade in an amount not to exceed $2,500 and to transfer funds 
from Board Contingency Fund (01-4110-97) to Administration Maint & Repair 
Equipment (01-4120-35) in the amount of $2,500 for the upgrade of Board Room 
media. Alderman Linker seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

b. Purchase 14 ft. dump trailer for Maintenance
At its February Planning Retreat, the Board discussed and prioritized purchase of a
dump trailer.  This goal was assigned a “high priority” rating to accomplish. Staff
received an initial estimate for retreat preparation and will obtain additional quotes to
ensure due diligence.  Cost is expected to be around $8,500.

ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve moving forward with the
prioritized purchase of a dump trailer in an amount not to exceed $9,000. Mayor Pro
Tem LaFevers seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.

Budget Amendment Request #11
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to transfer funds from Maintenance
Contingency Fund (01-4190-97) to Maintenance C.O. Equipment (01-4190-55) in the
amount of $4,000 for the purchase of a dump trailer. Alderman Cress seconded the
motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.

c. Town Hall Info Sign
After receiving estimates from three different vendors, Staff recommended two
proposals from Golden Rule Signs to the Board of Aldermen for discussion and/or
approval.  The proposed two-sided sign would be professionally installed within the
existing Granite frame donated to the Town of Granite Quarry by the Granite Quarry
Civitans. Capabilities of the sign include Text, Picture, Graphic, Video Animations,
and Time & Temperature made up of 2 billion colors. The unit would utilize the current
110-volt supply and would be composed of a Polycarb-Makrolon material.

Mayor Feather stated that the town should work with the Civitans to keep their logo 
visible.  

The video proposal from Golden Rule Signs was shown to the Board. 

ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers made a motion to approve moving forward with 
the Town Hall informational sign upgrade in an amount not to exceed $26,000. 
Alderman Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 9 Printed on 5/8/2019



Alderman Costantino asked who would control the sign. Ms. Shockley responded that 
the front office staff would receive training from the company. 

Alderman Cress asked if the sign would be weather tolerable – specifically freezing 
weather, could it be repaired if it was broken and who would be making the repairs. 
Ms. Shockley stated that she would follow-up with the vendor to get these questions 
answered. 

Budget Amendment Request #12 
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to transfer funds from Board 
Contingency Fund (01-4110-97) to Maintenance & Repairs Buildings & Grounds (01-
4190-24) in the amount of $26,000 to upgrade the current information sign with an 
electronic sign. Alderman Linker seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in 
favor. 

d. Request to Dispose of Property – Police Department
The Police Department requested to dispose of one department pistol, a Glock’ model
22 .40 cal. with serial number GMV366. This is Sgt. Wayne Trivett’s duty weapon.

ACTION:  Alderman Cress made a motion to declare a service weapon (Glock model
22 .40 cal. with serial number GMV366) as surplus property and award it to Sergeant
Wayne Trivett for the price of $1.00 upon his retirement. Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers
seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.

e. Discussion on Road Patching
An estimate from Carolina Siteworks was presented to the Board for several areas of
roads in town that have been identified by Staff as in need of repair. Currently
Maintenance uses cold patch asphalt to fill in some potholes, however, this is only a
temporary fix.

The total for all projects is $114,635. There is currently $42,087 in Powell Bill funds
available. This would leave a balance of $71,481 to finish the project.

Option   1 – Assign $71,481 from fund balance.

Option 2 – Use the remaining annual allotment of Powell Bill funds and do the
additional repairs in the next budget year 2019-2020.

Option 3 – Borrow $71,481 to be paid back in future years from Powell Bill Funds.

Option 4 – Wait until the next budget year to complete all the work.

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers made a motion to spend all $114,635 now to
repair all roads. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 10 Printed on 5/8/2019



 
There was discussion regarding Powell Bill funding, priority of road and sidewalk 
repairs and who would be making the decision on which roads were fixed with the 
funds. 

 
The vote was 2-3 with Alderman Costantino and Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers for 
and Alderman Cress, Alderman Linker and Mayor Feather opposed. The motion 
failed. 
 
ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion that the available $42,087 from Powell 
Bill Funds be used now to repair as much as possible. Alderman Linker seconded the 
motion. The motion passed 4-1 with Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers opposed. 

 
f. Centennial Park Repair – FEMA 

During Hurricane Florence the Granite Centennial Park received damage that included 
washout and downed trees. The damages were turned over to FEMA for assistance. 
The GQ Maintenance Department worked with FEMA to calculate the damages and 
get an estimate for repairs. The process for FEMA on this project is complete and 
should be funded at 75%. This would allow for Mid Carolina Construction to add gravel 
and rework the nature trails to before storm damage condition. This would also add 
new rip- rap to the Bank Street culvert area.  

 
Budget Amendment Request #13 
ACTION:  Alderman Linker made a motion to transfer funds from Fund Balance 
Appropriated (01-3991-99) to Community Development Maintenance & Repair 
Buildings & Grounds (01-4930-24) in the amount of $31,840 for damages caused by 
Hurricane Florence to be reimbursed by FEMA. Alderman Costantino seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Alderman Cress asked what was being done to prevent this from happening again. 
Chief Hord responded that mitigation had reviewed the plan and had no further 
recommendations. 

 
Budget Amendment Request #14 
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to transfer funds from Fund Balance 
Appropriated (01-3991-99) in the amount of $29,675 to Community Development 
Maintenance & Repair Buildings & Grounds (01-4930-24) and Parks Maintenance & 
Repair Buildings & Grounds (01-6130-24) for the repairs to the Nature Trails at the 
Centennial Park to be reimbursed by FEMA at 75%. The remaining 25% is the 
responsibility of the Town. Alderman Cress seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
with all in favor. 

 
g. Proclamation – 50th Anniversary of Municipal Clerks Week 

Mayor Feather read the proclamation. 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 11 Printed on 5/8/2019



11.  Board Comments 
 

a. Alderman Costantino thanked the Town Staff for the card to his wife. 
 

b. Alderman Linker mentioned that he would like to see the priority items identified at 
the Board Retreat, including sidewalks, addressed. 

 
c. Alderman Cress stated that 1) he would like to reiterate what Alderman Linker said 

regarding the priority items and 2) the 90 days is up on the Byrd property, what is being 
done? 

 
Mayor Feather stated that Mr. Byrd would like to visit the property one last time. Mr. 
Smith has tried to contact him to schedule this. Chief Hord stated that a 40-yard 
dumpster has been ordered and cleanup will begin Monday. 

 
12. Mayor’s Notes – Announcements and Date Reminders  

 
a. Update on Granite Quarry Projects from MPO meeting on March 27th 

Mayor Feather stated that several projects were discussed at the MPO meeting 
including: 

• Resolution 2019-07 for Dunns Mountain Church Road and US Hwy 52 
intersection was voted on and there was unanimous support. 

• Resolution 2019-10 for Peeler Road and St. Paul improvements was accepted 
into the TIP and will be evaluated. 

• Bridge replacement over Crane Creek, State Route 2300, has a let date of 
4/10/19. 

• 25 miles of resurfacing of US Hwy 52 will begin June 3, 2019. It is unknown 
whether this will involve the downtown area. 

• Heilig Road and Faith Road have surveyor markers out for a turn lane. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers was excused from the meeting. 
 

b. Planning Board Meeting – Monday, April 8th 5:30 p.m. 
c. CCOG Executive Board Meeting – Wednesday, April 10th 6:00 p.m. Mayor Feather 

stated that this time has shifted and asked the Clerk to look into the new time. 
d. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting – Monday, April 15th 5:00 p.m. 
e. Revitalization Team Meeting – Tuesday, April 16th 3:30 p.m. 
f. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO Meeting – Wednesday, April 24th 5:30 p.m. 
g. Litter Sweep North Carolina – Friday, April 26th 1:00 P.M. -3:00 p.m. 
h. Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting – Monday, May 6th 7:00 p.m. 

 
13. Mayor’s Action- No action taken. 
 
14. Adjournment 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 12 Printed on 5/8/2019



ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Alderman Cress 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:49 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Aubrey Smith 
Deputy Clerk, 
Finance, 
Human Resources Analyst 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 13 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry 
Fire Department 

Established May 15th, 1950 
PO Box 351 

www.granitequarrync.gov            Granite Quarry, NC        704/279-5596 

Board Report April/2019 Chief Hord 

Emergency Calls for Service April 2019 
35 calls in district 

• 16 - EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs)
• 1- Brush Fire
• 9- Public Assist/Assist invalid
• 3- Service Call (non-emergency assistance)
• 2- Structure Fires
• 2-MVA’s (Motor Vehicle Accident)
• 1-Fire Alarm
• 1-Haz-Mat

14 calls to Salisbury 
• 2- Alarm/Structure calls canceled en-route
• 10- Staged en-route or on scene them released
• 1-Move up
• 1-EMS

3 calls to Rockwell Rural 
• 1- Canceled en-route
• 2-MVA (Motor Vehicle Accident)

4 calls to Union 
• 2- Alarm/Structure calls canceled en-route
• 1- EMS
• 1- Brush Fire

7 Calls to Rockwell City 
• 6-Cancelled En Route
• 1-Staged then released

2-Call to South Salisbury– Canceled en route
2-Call to Bostain Heights – Staged water point until released

TOTAL – 67 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 14 Printed on 5/8/2019



ACTIVITIES  
• Daily activities include apparatus & equipment checks, training, station maintenance, 

pre-plan development, hose and hydrant maintenance, water points, emergency response, 
public education, inspections and the assistance of other divisions within the Town of 
GQ.  

• Our monthly training included E.M.T. continuing education. Joint Training and live burn 
with Faith F.D. and Rockwell Rural F.D. along with quarterly meeting/training with 
Salisbury City. 

• Multiple days of driver training, water point training and district familiarization with new 
members. 

• Car Seat Check Station on Thursday from 1 p.m.to 4 p.m. – 2 seats installed/checked. 
• 2 Station/Apparatus Tours (Nonscheduled, Walkup, & Scheduled) 
• Site Reviews and Business info updates with part-time and fulltime personnel 
• Thursday’s communities in school lunch with GQ elementary school students 
• Assisted with Walk-a-thon and Easter egg hunt events 

 
 

 
EQUIPMENT 
 
U-579 oil change and inspection 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 15 Printed on 5/8/2019



     
                                                   

April 2019 Maintenance Report 
 

• Park grounds and bathrooms cleaned weekdays   
• Vacuum and Sweeping curbs– Ongoing   
• Town limbs picked up 1st and 3rd week    
• Various pot holes filled   
• PM checks HVAC – Town Hall and Legion    
• PM check on Baldor Generator     
• Reported street light outages to Duke Energy  
• Legion cleaned/mopped weekly  
• Painted metal bleachers at Civic Park  
• Centennial Park contracted gravel work complete  
• Centennial Park Gazebo- reroofed and stained             
• FEMA conference calls/meetings for damage- ongoing  
• Tennis court cracks – epoxy (still rough)   
• Sprayed weeds at parks   
• Started boom cutting with skid steer  
• Spraying right-of-ways  
• Planted bushes at Legion building  
• New sand and net at volleyball court  
• Picked up new dump trailer from Faith Farm  
• Installed monitors in board room 

• Various other tasks completed  
 

                              
                    2007 Ford Truck Mileage – 54,870                 +315 miles 
                  1990 Chevy Truck Mileage - 106,699            Odometer froze 

1995 Ford Dump Truck Mileage – 35,409      +197 miles      
2009 Ford Truck Mileage – 52,946                 +1221 miles               

Town of Granite Quarry Page 16 Printed on 5/8/2019



 
 

Planning Department Report 
For May 6, 2019 Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 
1. SECU 

a. Contractor was in town this month at site with grading contractor, met with 
Manager 

b. Sign has been erected at front of site 
 

2. Planning Board 
a. Met April 8, 2019 

i. Last work session for Comprehensive Plan update 
ii. Distributed draft copy of Update Comprehensive Plan 

iii. Discussed Code Enforcement Efforts and plans to improve 
iv. Will meet 5/13/19 to discuss and approve draft copy of Comprehensive 

Plan 
 

3. Village at Granite 
a. Work continues on entrance monument sign 
b. Work continues on turn lane on Faith Rd. 
c. Drafted and submitted a Memorandum of Agreement concerning the Town’s 

policy on the Improvements Bond and submitted to manager and Town Attorney 
for approval 

d. Final Plat drawings submitted and approved by various bodies for recording at 
register of Deeds- last hurdle prior to selling lots 
 

4. Working on proposed Uniform Development Code and Code of Ordinance revisions 
a. Rear of Building improvements in downtown area 
b. Table of Uses and Zoning Map revisions for churches, schools, parks, cemeteries, 

and government buildings 
c. Sidewalks 
d. Merging Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment 
e. Signs 
f. Minimum House Size 
g. Multiple Street connections for large subdivisions 
h. Motorized Bicycles in parks 
i. Day Care vs Schools vs Pre-Schools 
j. Code Enforcement 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 17 Printed on 5/8/2019



k. Schedule of fees and clarification in Chpt. 11 on what fees will be billed to the 
developer 

l. Storm Water Management 
m. Fencing 
n. Change of tenant on commercial rental property 

 
5. IOM Enterprises 

a. Work has begun on Phase 1 at south end of existing building 
 

6. Easter Creek  
a. Responded to request for information concerning sewer location for Phase II 

building, contacted our engineer and Town of Faith engineer for technical 
information 

b. Discussed engineering billings for Phase I building, specifically access road, with 
developer 
 

7. Code Enforcement 
a. Responded to numerous code enforcement complaints, many due to unmowed 

grass 
  

8. Miscellaneous 
a. Met with property owner about potential rezoning of property on S. Salisbury Ave 

to LI from RL 
b. Reviewed census meeting information with Aubrey 
c. Provided information on stormwater and sinkhole responsibility to Planning 

Board Chair 
d. Discussed various parcels with property owners, realtors and developer 
e. Discussed revenue projections from permits and planning with manager 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 18 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry-Faith Joint Police Authority 
P.O. Box 351  143 North Salisbury Ave, Granite Quarry, NC 28072 

Office: (704)279-2952  Fax: (704)279-6648 

Police Department Report 

April 2019 

• Call volume report for the month of April 2019:

o Date of Report: 04/29/19

o Total calls for service/activities - 304

o Incident Reports- 12

o Arrest Reports- 3

o Crash Reports- 10

o Traffic Citations- 18

o See attached reports: Breakout of total calls for service between

Townships.

• The following is the ending and average mileage for each vehicle by month:

221- End- 56,836
222- End- 37,025
224- End- 55,026
225- End- 43,050
226- End- 23,564
227- End- 34,913
228- End- 17,650
229- End- 22,314
230- End- 4,523

• The average response time for March calls for service is 3.18 minutes.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 19 Printed on 5/8/2019



63Total

GQPD
Number of Events by Nature

CFS Faith April 2019

Nature # Events

103A2  FOUND PROPERTY 1

104D2 COMMERCIAL BURG ALARM 2

115D1 DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE 1

118B2 FRAUD-PAST FORGERY 1

125B2 LOCKOUT - ROUTINE 1

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 1

130D1 LARCENY 1

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC VIOLATION 1

911 HANG UP 9

ASSIST FIRE DEPT 1

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 1

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 20

COMMUNITY PROGRAM 1

DELIVER MESSAGE 3

FOLLOWUP 1

GENERAL INFORMATION 2

OPEN DOOR 1

SUBPOENA SERVICE 1

TRAFFIC STOP 10

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 3

WARRANT SERVICE 1

Report Generated: 04/29/2019 15:15:29 | User ID: COOKMJ

Page 1 of 1\\rowannc.org\dfs\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_NumberOfEventsByNature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 20 Printed on 5/8/2019



GQPD
Number of Events by Nature
CFS Granite Quarry April 2019

Nature # Events

104C1 ALARM-VEHICLE 1

104D1 RESIDENTIAL BURG ALARM 2

104D2 COMMERCIAL BURG ALARM 4

106B5 PAST ASSAULT 1

106D5 ASSAULT IN PROGRESS 1

110B2 PAST RESIDENTIAL B&E 1

110D2 RESIDENTIAL B&E 2

112D2 DECEASED (SUDDEN) 1

113D1 DISTURBANCE / PHYSICAL 1

113D2 DISTURBANCE / VERBAL 2

114B1 PAST DOMESTIC 1

114D1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 1

114D2 VERBAL DOMESTIC 2

114D4 VERBAL FAMILY DOMESTIC 1

115D1 DRIVING UNDER INFLUENCE 3

118D2 FRAUD-FORGERY 2

119B2 HARASS - PAST HARASSMENT 1

121C1 MENTAL - NOT VIOLENT 1

121O2 MENTAL COMMITMENT 1

125B1 CHECK WELFARE - ROUTINE 5

125B2 LOCKOUT - ROUTINE 2

127D2 SUICIDE THREAT 1

129B3 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUM (PAST) 1

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 5

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 5

129C5 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE 2

131B1 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT - PD 1

132B1 MINOR TRAFFIC VIOLATION 1

132B2 PARKING COMPLAINT 1

Report Generated: 04/29/2019 15:14:11 | User ID: COOKMJ

Page 1 of 2\\rowannc.org\dfs\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_NumberOfEventsByNature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 21 Printed on 5/8/2019



244Total

Nature # Events

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC VIOLATION 3

133D1 TRESPASSING 2

25A1 PSYCHIATRIC (PD-ROUTINE) 1

32B3 UNKNOWN MEDICAL 1

32D1 UNKNOWN MEDICAL 1

911 HANG UP 5

9E1 CARDIAC OR RESP ARREST 1

ASSIST FIRE DEPT 2

ASSIST MOTORIST 1

BANK ALARM 1

BURGLARY ALARM 6

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 62

COMMUNITY PROGRAM 1

DELIVER MESSAGE 4

FOLLOWUP 19

GENERAL INFORMATION 4

LAW CALL 1

LITTERING OR ILLEGAL DUMPING 1

PARK CHECK 27

REPOSSESSION 4

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 1

SUBPOENA SERVICE 2

TRAFFIC CHECK 1

TRAFFIC CONTROL 1

TRAFFIC STOP 30

TRANSPORT PRISONER OR OTHER 1

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 7

WARRANT SERVICE 1

Page 2 of 2Number of Events by Nature
Town of Granite Quarry Page 22 Printed on 5/8/2019



Budgeted YTD % Used
Revenues: $2,358,499 $2,098,976 89%

     Total Revenues: $2,358,499 $2,098,976 89%
Expenses:

Governing Body $25,940.62 $9,508.74 37%

Administration $493,511.16 $335,420.68 68%

Maintenance $304,425.00 $234,373.35 77%

Police Dept. $656,994.00 $561,718.66 85%

Fire Department $431,606.00 $365,092.34 85%

Sanitation/Environmental $178,000.00 $133,015.93 75%

Parks & Recreation $46,419.00 $29,008.17 62%
     Total Expenses $2,136,896 $1,668,137.87 78%

Finance Department

Please see the Budget Vs. Actual Report attached for specific line items

Department

As of April 29, 2019
Breakdown of Departments:

Page 1 of 6Town of Granite Quarry Page 23 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of April 29, 2019

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-3100-12 Taxes - Budget Year $784,609 $752,424 -$32,185 96%
01-3100-17 Tax Penalties & Interest $5,000 $2,760 -$2,240 55%
01-3101-12 Taxes - Prior Years $12,000 $9,319 -$2,681 78%
01-3102-12 Vehicle Tax $85,000 $83,426 -$1,574 98%
01-3230-31 Local Option Sales Tax $695,059 $640,216 -$54,843 92%
01-3231-31 Solid Waste Disposal Tax $0 $1,577 $1,577 0%
01-3260-41 Privilege Licenses/Permit $350 $390 $40 111%
01-3261-31 Cable Franshise Tax $5,000 $5,202 $202 104%
01-3315-33 Fireman Retirement $300 $0 -$300 0%
01-3316-32 Powell Pave & Patch Funds $84,457 $83,390 -$1,067 99%
01-3322-31 Beer & Wine - State $14,000 $0 -$14,000 0%
01-3324-31 Utilities Franchise Tax $100,800 $103,283 $2,483 102%
01-3330-84 County First Responders $4,020 $3,015 -$1,005 75%
01-3340-41 Permits $1,200 $1,120 -$80 93%
01-3411-89 Community Appearance Rev $200 $5 -$195 3%
01-3413-89 Miscellaneous Revenue $6,100 $466 -$5,634 8%
01-3431-41 Police Authority Revenue_Faith $140,434 $137,277 -$3,157 98%
01-3431-45 Police Report Revenue $100 $90 -$10 90%
01-3431-89 Police Miscellaneous $1,500 $1,552 $52 103%
01-3471-51 Solid Waste Collection - Salisbury $165,744 $116,121 -$49,623 70%
01-3491-41 Subdivision & Zoning Fees $2,000 $2,650 $650 133%
01-3613-41 Parks Miscellaneous $0 $993 $993 100%
01-3713-33 Sal. Water/Sewer Reimbursement $50,000 $132,000 $82,000 264%
01-3831-89 Interest on Investments * $2,145 $8,616 $6,471 402%
01-3833-89 Donations/Contributions $100 $0 -$100 0%
01-3834-41 Park Shelter Rentals (Maint) $5,000 $3,365 -$1,635 67%
01-3835-80 Police Surplus Items Sold $1,500 $0 -$1,500 0%
01-3835-81 Surplus items Sold $2,000 $2,524 $524 126%
01-3837-31 ABC Net Revenue-Co. $10,000 $7,194 -$2,806 72%
01-3991-99 Fund balance Appropriated $179,881 $0 -$179,881 0%

$2,358,499 $2,098,976 -$259,523 89%

* See last page for breakdown of account# 01-3831-89 Interest on Investments

Revenues:

Page 2 of 6
Town of Granite Quarry Page 24 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of April 29, 2019

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4110-02 Mayor/Alderman Salary $12,161 $5,836 $6,324 48%
01-4110-03 Mayor Expense $250 $0 $250 0%
01-4110-08 Board Expense $800 $225 $575 28%
01-4110-09 FICA Expense $931 $446 $485 48%
01-4110-40 Dues & Subscriptions $820 $0 $820 0%
01-4110-45 Insurance & Bonds $2,750 $3,001 -$251 109%
01-4110-97 Board Contingency $8,229 $0 $8,229 0%

$25,941 $9,509 $16,432 37%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4120-00 Salaries-Regular $194,100 $158,332 $35,768 82%
01-4120-02 Salaries-Part Time $25,000 $24,845 $155 99%
01-4120-07 401K Expense $9,750 $7,290 $2,460 75%
01-4120-09 FICA Expense $16,800 $13,039 $3,761 78%
01-4120-10 Retirement Expense $14,550 $9,049 $5,501 62%
01-4120-11 Group Insurance $42,000 $22,362 $19,638 53%
01-4120-13 Unemployment Expense $0 $3,540 -$3,540 100%
01-4120-18 Professional Services $15,400 $4,305 $11,095 28%
01-4120-22 Banquet Expense $1,500 $1,365 $135 91%
01-4120-26 Office Expense $10,000 $5,503 $4,497 55%
01-4120-29 Supplies & Equipment $200 $187 $13 93%
01-4120-31 Training & Schools $7,000 $6,819 $181 97%
01-4120-32 Telephone/Communications $3,000 $2,680 $320 89%
01-4120-33 Utilites $4,600 $2,962 $1,638 64%
01-4120-34 Printing $3,500 $3,005 $495 86%
01-4120-35 Maint/Repair Equipment $3,000 $1,859 $1,141 62%
01-4120-37 Advertising $2,500 $1,841 $659 74%
01-4120-40 Dues & Subscriptions $13,000 $11,808 $1,192 91%
01-4120-45 Insurance & Bonds $8,500 $4,215 $4,285 50%
01-4120-49 Visionary Projects $0 $0 $0 0%
01-4120-50 Community Projects $4,500 $3,432 $1,068 76%
01-4120-52 Cap Outlay-Computer $750 $0 $750 0%
01-4120-57 C.O. Land Purchase $1,233 $1,232 $1 99.93
01-4120-60 Contracted Services $45,145 $31,423 $13,722 70%
01-4120-62 Christmas Lights $9,083 $9,082 $1 99.99
01-4120-71 Debt Services - Principal $50,000 $0 $50,000 0%
01-4120-72 Debt Services - Interest $8,400 $5,246 $3,154 62%

$493,511 $335,421 $158,090 68%

Governing Body:

Administration:

Page 3 of 6
Town of Granite Quarry Page 25 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of April 29, 2019

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4190-00 Salaries - Regular $99,000 $94,189 $4,811 95%
01-4190-02 Salaries - Part-Time $29,000 $22,935 $6,065 79%
01-4190-07 401K Expense $4,950 $4,830 $120 98%
01-4190-09 FICA Expense $8,660 $9,139 ($479) 106%
01-4190-10 Retirement Expense $7,455 $6,546 $909 88%
01-4190-11 Group Insurance $22,000 $19,161 $2,839 87%
01-4190-20 Motor Fuel $5,500 $4,589 $911 83%
01-4190-21 Uniforms $1,500 $798 $702 53%
01-4190-24 Maint & Repairs Buildings & Grounds $31,500 $3,739 $27,761 12%
01-4190-25 Maint & Repairs Trucks $2,500 $2,160 $340 86%
01-4190-26 Office Expense $100 $0 $100 0%
01-4190-29 Supplies & Equipment $7,000 $5,487 $1,513 78%
01-4190-31 Training & Schools $500 $5 $495 1%
01-4190-32 Telephone/Communications $1,000 $764 $236 76%
01-4190-33 Utilities $3,000 $2,156 $844 72%
01-4190-34 Printing $350 $5 $345 2%
01-4190-35 Maint & Repairs Equip $9,000 $7,506 $1,494 83%
01-4190-45 Insurance & Bonds $9,000 $8,370 $630 93%
01-4190-51 Tools & Light Equipment $2,500 $2,266 $234 91%
01-4190-53 C.O.Veteran Memorial $6,146 $0 $6,146 0%
01-4190-55 C.O. Equipment $16,847 $20,262 ($3,415) 120%
01-4190-60 Contracted Services $19,417 $19,466 ($49) 100%
01-4190-97 Maintenance Contingency Fund $17,500 $0 $17,500 0%

$304,425 $234,373 $70,052 77%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-6130-24 Maint/Repair Bldg & Grounds $23,419 $11,365 $12,054 49%
01-6130-29 Supplies & Equipment $6,000 $4,696 $1,304 78%
01-6130-33 Utilities $14,000 $10,205 $3,795 73%
01-6130-60 Contracted Services $3,000 $2,742 $258 91%

$46,419 $29,008 $17,411 62%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4710-33 Utilities (Street Lights) $36,000 $24,883 $11,117 69%
01-4710-64 Recycling $28,000 $23,086 $4,914 82%
01-4710-65 Garbage Services $114,000 $85,047 $28,953 75%

$178,000 $133,016 $44,984 75%

Parks & Rec:

Environmental Protection:

Maintenance:

Page 4 of 6Town of Granite Quarry Page 26 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of April 29, 2019

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4310-00 Salaries-Regular $334,000 $297,206 $36,794 89%
01-4310-02 Salaries-Part Time $33,100 $27,366 $5,734 83%
01-4310-07 401K Expense $16,700 $14,091 $2,609 84%
01-4310-09 FICA Expense $27,311 $24,721 $2,590 91%
01-4310-10 Retirement Expense $26,000 $19,914 $6,086 77%
01-4310-11 Group Insurance $67,005 $53,721 $13,284 80%
01-4310-20 Motor Fuel $18,000 $12,697 $5,303 71%
01-4310-21 Uniforms $3,000 $1,751 $1,249 58%
01-4310-25 Maint & Repair-Autos $6,000 $4,062 $1,938 68%
01-4310-26 Office Expense $1,500 $603 $897 40%
01-4310-29 Supplies & Equipment $8,050 $2,965 $5,085 37%
01-4310-31 Training & Schools $1,800 $874 $926 49%
01-4310-32 Telephone/Communications $7,000 $5,331 $1,669 76%
01-4310-33 Utilites $3,000 $1,054 $1,946 35%
01-4310-34 Printing $1,200 $658 $542 55%
01-4310-35 Maint & Repair-Equipment $2,000 $1,697 $303 85%
01-4310-40 Dues  & Subscriptions $1,850 $1,508 $343 81%
01-4310-45 Insurance & Bonds $17,900 $17,795 $105 99%
01-4310-54 C.O. Motor vehicle fund $45,678 $41,503 $4,175 91%
01-4310-55 C.O. Equipment $11,900 $9,848 $2,052 83%
01-4310-60 Contracted Services $24,000 $22,354 $1,646 93%

$656,994 $561,719 $95,275 85%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4340-00 Salaries - Regular $103,292 $93,134 $10,158 90%
01-4340-02 Salaries - Part-Time $160,000 $127,916 $32,084 80%
01-4340-07 401K Expense $5,176 $4,584 $592 89%
01-4340-09 FICA Expense $24,200 $17,370 $6,830 72%
01-4340-10 Retirement Expense $7,765 $6,332 $1,433 82%
01-4340-11 Group Insurance $23,500 $20,407 $3,093 87%
01-4340-17 Firemen's Pension Fund $2,620 $0 $2,620 0%
01-4340-20 Motor Fuel $4,000 $3,402 $598 85%
01-4340-21 Uniforms $3,000 $2,079 $921 69%
01-4340-25 Maint & Repairs-Trucks $12,000 $6,980 $5,020 58%
01-4340-26 Office Expense $500 $352 $148 70%
01-4340-29 Supplies & Equipment $20,000 $16,486 $3,514 82%
01-4340-31 Training & Schools $2,000 $467 $1,533 23%
01-4340-32 Telephone/Communications $3,000 $3,042 -$42 101%
01-4340-33 Utilities $4,900 $3,927 $973 80%
01-4340-34 Printing $700 $368 $332 53%
01-4340-35 Maint. & Repairs-Equipmen $3,000 $2,145 $855 72%
01-4340-40 Dues  & Subscriptions $2,900 $2,037 $863 70%
01-4340-45 Insurance & Bonds $14,000 $28,542 -$14,542 204%
01-4340-55 C.O. Equipment $17,116 $8,112 $9,004 47%
01-4340-60 Contracted Services $15,778 $15,253 $525 97%
01-4340-72 Debt Services - Interest $2,159 $2,159 $0 100%

$431,606 $365,092 $66,514 85%

Police Department:

Fire Department:

Page 5 of 6Town of Granite Quarry Page 27 Printed on 5/8/2019



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of April 29, 2019

Acct# Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 YTD

237779 432.13 418.18 432.13 432.13 390.28 432.13
237809 368.01 356.13 368 368.01 332.37 368.01
77151 24.97 24.16 24.96 355.02 331.99 367.59
50261 264.12 287.36 296.94 296.94 268.19 296.95
51519 22.98 23.74 23.74 22.97 23.74 133.03 212.42 212.42 191.85 212.41

22.98 23.74 23.74 22.97 1112.97 1218.86 1334.45 1664.52 1514.68 1677.09 0 0 8616

19011 95.38 244.17 112.76 137.07 135.21 87 60.37 33.24 36.82
7545 6.37 7.22 5.74 6.74 6.07 6.49 5.86 6.49

3011186 7.68 8.71 6.92 7.94 8.2 7.43 7.94 7.18 7.95

109.43 260.1 125.42 151.75 143.41 100.5 74.8 46.28 51.26 0 0 0 1062.95

9678.95

Certificates of Deposits:

Money Market Accounts:

Interest on Investment Account 01-3831-89 reflects interest from Certificates of Deposit Accounts only. Interest on Money Market Accounts remains in Money Market Accounts. 

Total YTD:

Interest on Investments by Month
For FY 2018-2019

Town of Granite Quarry Page 28 Printed on 5/8/2019



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Agenda Item 4       Guests and Presentations 

Summary 

A. Granite Quarry Athletic Association
Garry Mattingly and Jason Smith have asked to make a
presentation to the Board regarding trails and pump tracks.

B. Granite Quarry Civitan Club
Howard Brown, Jr has asked to address the board
regarding the town hall information sign upgrade.

Action Requested 

Motion Made By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Second By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

In case of tie: 

Mayor Bill Feather 

For             

Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 29 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 30 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 31 Printed on 5/8/2019



          FY18/19 Paving and Repair Project 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Agenda Item 6B 

Summary 

Last month the Board voted to move forward with the 
FY18/19 street repairs project using the available $42,087 
left in remaining Powell Bill Funds. 

During discussion, several board members asked about the 
repair of multiple sidewalk sections around town that were 
rated “high priority” at the board’s planning retreat as well. 

Chief Hord ran through both street and sidewalk priority 
sections following the meeting.  He has come up with a plan 
that would repair the most pressing of the street and 
sidewalk priorities, still within budget. 

Attachments 

A. List and description of target streets and sidewalks

B. Corresponding maps of the sidewalk sections proposed
to be added to the FY18/19 project

Action Requested 

Motion to approve the revised list of streets and sidewalks 
to be repaired in the FY18/19 paving & repair project as 
presented. 

Motion Made By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Second By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

In case of tie: 

Mayor Bill Feather 

For             

Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 32 Printed on 5/8/2019



Street Description Measurement Cost 
Garland Dr Small patch 7 x 7 650
Foil Dr Patch 18 x 18 2950
Phillip Dr Patch at entrance - 2 valve boxes 65 x 12 7,475
Phillip Dr #2 Cul- da - sac patch 13 x 12 1,575
North Oak St #1 Small patch 4 x 4 650
Railroad St #2 patch 72 x 18 11,900
DeLara Ct Small patch 4 x 12 700
Palasade Dr Patch 4 x 10 1,350
Dominion Dr Patch 4 x 10 1,350
Depot at 52 Small patches (3) 7 x 7 1,500

Total Project - Streets 30,100

Sidewalk Description Measurement Cost 
Main St 609 & 614 Main St (see Map 1) 30 ft *
Main St & Depot Crescent Const-both sides (see Map 2) 105 ft *
Main St 100 block  (see Map 3) 83 ft *
Peeler St 300 block  (see Map 4) 65 ft *
Peeler St 700 block  (see Map 5) 330 ft *

Total Project - Sidewalks 11,350
* Contractor quoted sections in lump sum

Powell Funds Avaliable 42,087
Total Streets and Sidewalks 41,450

Town of Granite Quarry Page 33 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 34 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 35 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 36 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 37 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 38 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 39 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 40 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 41 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 42 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 43 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 44 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 45 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 46 Printed on 5/8/2019



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Agenda Item 7C  Poultry Waste Storage in ETJ 

Summary 

Multiple residents from the subdivision of Granite Commons 
have complained to the Town about nuisance and environmental 
concerns associated with chicken manure being stored within the 
Town’s Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction, adjacent to the subdivision. 

Currently the Town has no ordinance prohibiting this storage.   

Action Requested 

Motion to send this issue to the Planning Board for study.  A 
report and/or any recommendations from the Planning Board 
should be presented to the Board of Aldermen by no later than 
the August regular monthly meeting. 

Motion Made By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Second By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

In case of tie: 

Mayor Bill Feather 

For             

Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 47 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 48 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 49 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 50 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 51 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 52 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 53 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 54 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 55 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 56 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 57 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 58 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 59 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 60 Printed on 5/8/2019



Agenda Item Summary 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

May 6, 2019 

Agenda Item 7F

Summary 

At the February planning retreat, the Board recommended adding 

a handrail to the proposed steps project at Granite Lake Park and 

amended the estimated cost of the project to $2,500. 

Attached is the subsequent budget amendment (#16) to do so. 

It would transfer $3,365 from Park Shelter Rentals Revenue (01-

3834-41) to Parks Maint & Repairs-Bldgs & Grounds (01-6130-

24) for the replacement of the steps with handrail at Granite Lake

Park, and for railroad ties at the Civic Park.

Currently there are no standards written for parks' improvements. 

PERC has just begun studying each of the parks. Design 

guidelines would be a natural part of any resultant Master Plans 

they may develop. 

Maintenance recommends installing wooden handrails that match 

nearby existing ones. This would provide an effective and 

attractive handrail for this project, while keeping the construction 

cost low in case design guidelines are drawn up in the relatively 

near future that might set a different standard style or material to 

adhere to after that time. 

Attachments 

A. Photo of the steps project location and the proposed matching

handrail

B. Budget Amendment #16

Action Requested 

Motion to approve Budget Amendment #16 as presented. 

Budget Amendment #16 

Motion Made By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Second By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

For: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Against: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

In case of tie: 

Mayor Bill Feather 

For D 

Against D 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□

□ 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 61 Printed on 5/8/2019



B1 - Photo of the Granite Lake Park Steps Project Location 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 62 Printed on 5/8/2019



B2 - Photo of the proposed matching handrail 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 63 Printed on 5/8/2019



B1 an m i,1.;11rnl 101111. 

FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST #16 

May 6, 2019 

PURPOSE: To transfer funds from Park Shelter Rentals Revenue (01-3834-41) 
in the amount of $3,365 to Parks Maint & Repairs - Bldgs. & Grounds (01-
6130-24) for the replacement of the steps at Granite Lake Park and railroad 
ties at the Civic Park. 

TRANSFER FUNDS FROM: 

General Led2 er Acct. # and Description Amount 
01-3834-41 Park Shelter Rental Revenues $3,365 

TOTAL $3,365 

ADD FUNDS TO: 

General Led2er Acct. # and Description Amount 
01-6130-24 Parks Maint & Repair- Bldg & Grounds $3,365 

TOTAL $3,365 

The above Budget Amendment was approved I denied by the Manager or Board on 

William Feather, Mayor Shelly Shockley, Finance Officer 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 64 Printed on 5/8/2019



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-11

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR, THE MAYOR PRO-TEM, THE FINANCE 

OFFICER, AND ALDERMAN COSTANTINO TO SIGN REQUISITIONS FOR PAYMENT ON 

BEHALF OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY FOR THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

FUND (UTILITY ACCOUNT) GRANT TO ASSIST IN THE EXTENSION OF 

THE SEWER AT GRANITE INDUSTRIAL PARK 

WHEREAS, the Town of Granite Quarry is the recipient of a Two Hundred Eight Thousand Three 
Hundred Fifty dollars ($208,350) Industrial Development Fund (Utility Account) grant to assist in the 
extension of the sewer at Granite Industrial Park; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Commerce ("Commerce'), an agency of the State 
of North Carolina ("State"), has requested a Board Resolution authorizing individuals to sign Requisition 
for IDF Funds forms (Grant Number U-501); and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Aldermen of Town of Granite Quarry 
hereby authorizes: 

William D. Feather, Mayor 
Jim LaFevers, Mayor Pro-Tern 
Shelly Shockley, Finance Officer 
Jim Costantino, Alderman 

to act on behalf the Town of Granite Quarry in entering into any agreement with the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce; and to sign for and perform any and all responsibilities in relation to such 
agreement. 

Section 1. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA, ON THIS THE 6TH DAY OF MAY 2019. 

William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk, CMC 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 65 Printed on 5/8/2019



CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify: 

1. That I am the duly appointed Town Clerk of Granite Quarry, North Carolina; and

2. That the foregoing constitutes a Resolution of the Board of said the Town of Granite Quarry, as duly
adopted at a meeting of the Board of Aldermen thereof, held on the 6th day of May, 2019.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed by name and affixed the seal of said corporation, 
this __ th day of May, 2019. 

(AFFIX YOUR 

CORPORATE SEAL 

HERE) 

Tanya Maria Word, CMC 
Town Clerk 
Town of Granite Quarry 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 66 Printed on 5/8/2019



ROY COOPER 
Governor 

ANTHONY M. COPELAND 
Secretory 

April 22, 2019 

The Honorable William D. Feather 
Mayor, Town of Granite Quarry 
P.O. Box 351 
Granite Quarry, NC 28072-0351 

Dear Mayor Feather: 

SUBJECT: Industrial Development Fund: Grant Award, $208,350 
Grant Number: U-501 
Project: Granite Industrial Park Sewer Project 

KENNY FLOWERS 
Assistant Secretary 

It is my pleasure to notify you that the Town of Granite Quarry has been awarded a 
$208,350 Industrial Development Fund (Utility Account) grant to assist in the extension of 
sewer at Granite Industrial Park. It is our understanding that once completed, the town 
believes the additional acreage served by sewer will be significantly more attractive to 
perspective businesses. 

Everyone involved in the development of this project is to be congratulated. We 
commend the Town of Granite Quarry for its economic development efforts and look 
forward to working with you on the implementation of the project. If you have any 
questions regarding this grant award, please contact Mark N. Poole at (919) 814-4616 or 
mpoole@nccommerce.com. 

Sincerely, 

{-41()-J----------

Kenny Flowers 
Assistant Secretary, Rural Economic Development 

North Carolina Department of Commerce I Rural Economic Development Division 

301 North Wilmington Street I 434b Mail Service Center I Raleigh. NC 27699-4346 

919 814 4600 T Town of Granite Quarry Page 67 Printed on 5/8/2019



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING SIGNATORY FORM AND CERTIFICATION 

1. Indicate name and address of the recipient.

2. Two authorized signatures shall be required an all Requisitions for IDF Funds forms. The Rural Economic

Development Division will check the signatures on each requisition form to see that they match the authorized

signatures on the Signatory Form and Certification. Only the signatures of persons shown on the Signatory Form and

Certification will be accepted.

3. To allow for flexibility in making requisitions, it is recommended that four ( 4) authorized signatures appear on the

Signatory Form and Certification. Local governments may choose one of two options in completing the Certification.

If the local government chooses to use the first option, the chief elected official of the chief finance officer must sign

the form as the certifying officer. As signing as the certifying official, the chief elected official or chief finance officer

certifies that: 1) the signatures are authentic and 2) that the persons designated as signatories are authorized to sign

requisitions for payment. If the chief elected official or chief finance officer is the certifying official, that person

may not also be an authorized signature.

If the recipient wishes to have both the chief elected official and the chief finance officer sign requisitions for payment,

the recipient must select the second option for certification. In this case, the governing board must pass a resolution

authorizing sufficient persons to act as signatories. In addition, an individual who is not designated as a signatory

must certify the authenticity of the authorized signatures. Anyone who knows all of the persons authorized to sign

requisitions may sign as the certifying officer. Another local government staff person or member of the governing

body is recommended.

4. If the recipient wishes to change the persons authorized to sign Requisitions for IDF Funding forms, then a new

Signatory Form and Certification must be submitted to the Rural Economic Development Division.

5. No erasures or corrections may appear on the Signatory Form and Certification.

SIGNATORY FORM AND CERTIFICATION 

Recipient Name 

Address 

IDF Grant Number 

Signatures of individuals authorized to sign Requisitions for IDF Funds forms. (Two signatures required on such regulation) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) {Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) (Typed Title) 

(Signature) (Typed Name) {Typed Title) 

CERTIFICATION 

1. 0 I certify that the signatures above are of the individuals authorized to sign Requisition for IDF Funds form for the

above recipient. 

(Signature of Certifying Official) (Typed Title) 

2. 0 The governing board has passed a resolution authorizing the persons above to sign Requisition for IDF Funds

forms for the above recipient. A Copy of the resolution is attached. 

I certify that the signatures above are those of individuals authorized by resolution of the governing board of the 

recipient to sign Requisition for IDF Funds forms. 

(Signature of Certifying Official) (Typed Title) 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 68 Printed on 5/8/2019



RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT -
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT FUND UTILITY ACCOUNT 

The North Carolina Department of Commerce ("Commerce"), an agency of the 
State of North Carolina ("State"), enters into this Rural Economic Development Grant 
Agreement ("Grant Agreement") with the Town of Granite Quarry (the "Governmental 
Unit" and, together with Commerce, the "Parties") for a grant (the "Grant") from the 
Industrial Development Fund Utility Account ("Utility Account"). The application 
("Application") filed by the Governmental Unit for the Grant. 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Assembly ("General Assembly") has 
determined that it is the policy of the State to stimulate economic activity and to create new 
jobs for citizens of the State by affording grants to local governmental units in the State's 
economically distressed counties to construct or improve new or existing water, sewer, gas, 
telecommunications, high-speed broadband, electrical utility lines or facilities or 
transportation infrastructure for existing or new or proposed buildings, subject to the 
applicable requirements ofN.C.G.S. §§ 143B-437.01, 143B-472.127, 143B.143.128 and 04 
NCAC 011.0101; and 

WHEREAS, under N.C.G.S. §143B-472.128, the General Assembly empowered 
the North Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority ("Rural Authority") to review 
applications for and, where appropriate, authorize such Utility Account grants, and, under 
N.C.G.S. §§ 143B-472.126 and .127, the General Assembly authorized Commerce to
administer such grants; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §§143B-472.127 and .128, the Rural Authority 
has approved and awarded the Grant: (1) based on the terms, conditions, representations, 
commitments, maps, schedules and other submissions in the Application and any 
subsequent materials supporting the Application that have been approved of by Commerce 
in writing, all of which are incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit A to this Grant 
Agreement; (2) based on Commerce's Grant requirements and guidelines, which are 
incorporated herein and which may be amended, modified or supplemented and applied 
accordingly to this Grant Agreement by Commerce in its sole discretion; and (3) for the 
anticipated creation of certain jobs resulting from the construction or improvement of new 
or existing water, sewer, gas, telecommunications, high-speed broadband, electrical utility 
lines or facilities or transportation infrastructure for existing or new or proposed buildings 
(altogether, the "Project," as summarized in the Preliminary Engineering Report ("PER") 
submitted with the Application). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and such other 
valuable consideration as set out herein, the Parties mutually agree to the following terms 
and conditions: 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 69 Printed on 5/8/2019



1. Agreements to be Executed.

(a). As conditions of the Grant and prior to Commerce's release of any Grant 
funds: 

1. The highest elected official of the Governmental Unit shall execute
two originals of this Grant Agreement in its exact form (unless
Commerce approves of a change to its terms in writing) and shall
return one of them to Commerce;

11. Two signatory forms are executed and one is returned to Commerce;

111. Copies of the award letters regarding all other funding sources that
are participating in the Project; and

2. Changes in the Project or Other Conditions.

(a). A "Project Change" is any material alteration, addition, deletion or 
expansion of the Project, including (without limitation) material changes to 
construction or other infrastructure improvement or the PER. Prior to 
implementing a proposed Project Change, the Governmental Unit shall 
submit it to Commerce for review. The failure of the Governmental Unit to 
do so will subject it to the penalties and remedies set forth in Paragraph 
14(b) of this Grant Agreement, unless Commerce (in its sole discretion) 
expressly waives this requirement of pre-implementation review in writing. 
In any event, there shall be no Project Changes unless expressly approved 
of by Commerce in its sole discretion in a separate, written agreement 
stating, if applicable, the costs and schedule for completing the Project 
Change. 

(b). Additionally, the Governmental Unit shall immediately notify Commerce 
of any change in conditions or local law, or any other event, which may 
significantly affect its ability to oversee, administer or perform this Grant 
Agreement or the Project. In its sole discretion, Commerce may deem such 
a change in conditions, local law or other event to constitute a Project 
Change. 

3. Term of Grant Agreement. The effective period of this Grant Agreement shall
commence on April 22, 2019 ("Effective Date") and shall terminate on April 21,
2021 unless terminated on an earlier date under the terms of this Grant Agreement
(either one of which dates shall constitute the "Termination Date") or unless
extended for an express term in writing by Commerce.

2 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 70 Printed on 5/8/2019



4. Funding and Administrative Expenses.

5. 

(a). The Rural Authority grants to the Governmental Unit an amount not to 
exceed $208,350 for Project expenditures. If Commerce determines that 
the actual costs of the Project are less than the Grant amount, Commerce, in 
its sole discretion, may reduce the amount of the Grant accordingly. If the 
Governmental Unit determines that the actual costs of the Project are less 
than the Grant amount, it shall report so to Commerce and return any surplus 
Grant funds it has received to Commerce. 

(b ). The Governmental Unit hereby represents and warrants that all Grant funds 
shall be utilized exclusively for the purpose of the Project and consistent 
with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and requirements, and that the 
Governmental Unit shall not make or approve of any improper expenditure 
of Grant funds. 

(c). Without limitation and as determined by Commerce in its sole discretion, 
eligible expenditures incurred after the date of the Grant award may include 
those expenditures specified in 04 NCAC 011 .0102(a)(12)(C). 
Additionally, the Governmental Unit may use up to two percent (2%) of the 
Grant amount, if necessary, to verify that the Grant funds are used only in 
accordance with law and to otherwise administer the Grant. 

(d). Eligible expenditures do not include land-acquisition costs or costs for the 
construction of new buildings. Commerce retains the sole discretion to 
determine what additional expenditures are ineligible for Grant funding. 

(e). In the event local funds are committed to the Project, Grant funds must be 
drawn on a pro-rata basis with the local funds. 

Independent Status of the Governmental Unit. 

(a). The Governmental Unit is an entity independent from the Rural Authority 
and Commerce. The Grant Agreement, the Project and any actions taken 
pursuant to them shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture 
between or among Commerce, the Rural Authority, the Governmental Unit 
or any third party. Nor shall the Grant Agreement or the Project be 
construed to make the Governmental Unit (including its employees, agents, 
members or officials) or any third-party employees, agents, members or 
officials of Commerce or the Rural Authority. Neither the Governmental 
Unit nor any third party shall have the ability to bind Commerce or the Rural 
Authority to any agreement for payment of goods or services or represent 
to any person that they have such ability. 

(b ). The Governmental Unit shall be responsible for payment of all of its 
expenses, including rent, office expenses and all forms of compensation to 

3 Town of Granite Quarry Page 71 Printed on 5/8/2019



employees. The Governmental Unit shall provide worker's compensation 
insurance to the extent required for its operations and shall accept full 
responsibility for payments of unemployment tax or compensation, social 
security, income taxes, and any other charges, taxes or payroll deductions 
required by law in connection with its operations, for itself and its 
employees who are performing work pursuant to this Grant Agreement. All 
expenses incurred by the Governmental Unit are its sole responsibility, and 
neither Commerce nor the Rural Authority shall be liable for the payment 
of any obligations incurred in the performance of the Project. 

6. Method of Payment. Commerce shall pay the Grant funds to the Governmental Unit
after receipt of written requests for payment from the Governmental Unit certifying
that the conditions for such payment under this Grant Agreement have been met
and that the Governmental Unit is entitled to receive the amount so requested and
any other documentation that may be required by Commerce.

7. Obligation of Funds. The Governmental Unit shall not obligate Grant funds prior
to the Effective Date or subsequent to the Termination Date of this Grant
Agreement. All obligations outstanding as of the Termination Date shall be
liquidated within thirty (30) days after the Termination Date.

8. Project Records.

9. 

(a). The Governmental Unit shall maintain full, accurate and verifiable financial 
records, supporting documents and all other pertinent data for the Project in 
such a manner as to clearly identify and document the expenditure of the 
State funds provided under this Grant Agreement separate from accounts 
for other awards, monetary contributions or other revenue sources for this 
Project. 

(b ). The Governmental Unit shall retain all financial records, supporting 
documents and all other pertinent records related to the Grant Agreement 
and the Project for a period of five (5) years from the Termination Date. In 
the event such records are audited, all such records shall be retained beyond 
the five-year period until the audit is concluded and any and all audit 
findings have been resolved. 

Monitoring, Reports and Auditing. 

(a). The Governmental Unit agrees to ensure compliance and provide its 
assistance with such monitoring and auditing requirements as the State may 
request, including following the Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. 
Additionally, the Governmental Unit shall regularly monitor all 
performance under Grant-supported activities to ensure that all performance 
goals are being achieved. 

4 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 72 Printed on 5/8/2019



(b ). The Governmental Unit shall furnish Commerce such detailed written 
progress reports as Commerce may request in its sole discretion. Such 
reports should describe the progress made by the Governmental Unit toward 
achieving the purpose(s) of the Project. Such descriptions should include 
the successes and problems encountered during the reporting period. 
Failure to submit a required report by the scheduled submission date may 
result in the withholding, at Commerce's sole discretion, of any 
forthcoming payment until Commerce is in receipt of the delinquent report 
and the report meets with Commerce's approval. 

(c). The Governmental Unit acknowledges and agrees that, with regard to the 
Grant funds, it will be subject to the audit and reporting requirements 
prescribed by N.C.G.S §159-34, Local Government Finance Act - Annual 
Independent Audit; rules and regulations. Such audit and reporting 
requirements may vary depending upon the amount and source of Grant 
funding received by the Governmental Unit and are subject to change from 
time to time. Upon completion, the Governmental Unit shall forward to 
Commerce one copy of any audited financial statements and accompanying 
reports generated covering the period between the Effective Date and 
Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. 

( d). Within thirty (30) days after the Termination Date, the Governmental Unit 
shall submit a final report to Commerce describing the activities and 
accomplishments of the Project. The final report shall include a review of 
performance and activities over the entire Project period. In the final report, 
the Governmental Unit should describe the Project, how it was 
implemented, to what degree its established objectives were met and the 
difficulties encountered, what was changed and the cost. 

(e). The Governmental Unit grants the State and any of its related agencies, 
commissions or departments (including, without limitation, Commerce, the 
North Carolina State Auditor and the North Carolina Office of State Budget 
and Management) and any of their authorized representatives, at all 
reasonable times and as often as necessary (including after the Termination 
Date), access to and the right to inspect, copy, monitor, and examine all of 
the books, papers, records and other documents relating to the Grant 
Agreement or the Project. In addition, the Governmental Unit agrees to 
comply at any time, including after the Termination Date, with any requests 
by the State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority or 
Commerce) for other financial and organizational materials to permit the 
State to comply with its fiscal monitoring responsibilities or to evaluate the 
short- and long-range impact of its programs. 

(f). The Governmental Unit shall provide Commerce with a copy of all 
agreements governing incentives it has received for the Project from all 

5 Town of Granite Quarry Page 73 Printed on 5/8/2019



North Carolina State and local sources, and shall provide periodic updates 
to Commerce regarding the amount of incentives actually received. 

10. Termination; Availability of Funds.

(a). If the Governmental Unit fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its 
obligations or violates any of the covenants or stipulations under this 
Agreement, the Governmental Unit agrees that Commerce has the right to 
terminate this Grant Agreement by giving, as applicable, the Governmental 
Unit written notice specifying the Termination Date of this Grant 
Agreement, which Commerce may determine in its sole discretion. Upon 
such termination, Commerce shall have no responsibility to make additional 
Grant payments. Upon such termination, the Governmental Unit shall not 
expend any Grant funds without Commerce's express written authorization 
and shall return all unspent Grant funds to Commerce upon demand. 

(b ). The obligations of the Rural Authority and/or Commerce to pay any amounts 
under this Grant Agreement are contingent upon the availability and 
continuation of funds for such purpose. If funds for the Grant become 
unavailable, the Governmental Unit agrees that Commerce has the right to 
terminate this Grant Agreement by giving written notice specifying the 
Termination Date of this Grant Agreement, which Commerce shall determine 
in its sole discretion. Upon such termination, the State shall have no 
responsibility to make additional Grant payments. Further, upon such 
termination, the Governmental Unit shall not expend any Grant funds without 
Commerce's express written authorization and shall return all unspent Grant 
funds to Commerce upon demand. 

11. Liabilities and Loss. The Governmental Unit hereby agrees to release, indemnify
and hold harmless the State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority and
Commerce), and their respective members, officers, directors, employees, agents
and attorneys (together, the "Indemnified Parties"), from any claims of third parties
arising out of any act or omission of the Governmental Unit or any third party in
connection with the performance of this Grant Agreement or the Project, and for all
losses arising from its implementation. Without limiting the foregoing, the
Governmental Unit hereby releases the Indemnified Parties from, and agrees that
such Indemnified Parties are not liable for, and agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless the Indemnified Parties against, any and all liability or loss, cost or
expense, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, fines, penalties
and civil judgments, resulting from or arising out of or in connection with or
pertaining to, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person
occurring in connection with the Project, or resulting from any defect in the fixtures,
machinery, equipment or other property used in connection with the Project or
arising out of, pertaining to, or having any connection with, the Project or the
financing thereof (whether arising out of acts, omissions, or negligence of the
Governmental Unit, the Indemnified Parties or of any third party, or of any of their

6 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 74 Printed on 5/8/2019



agents, contractors, servants, employees, licensees, lessees, or assignees), including 
any claims and losses accruing to or resulting from any and all subcontractors, 
material men, laborers and any other person, firm or corporation furnishing or 
supplying work, services, materials or supplies in connection with the Project. 

12. Governmental Unit Representations and Warranties. The Governmental Unit
hereby represents and warrants that:

(a). The execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement have been duly
authorized by all necessary Governmental Unit action and are not in
contravention of law or in contravention of the provisions of any indenture
agreement or undertaking to which the Governmental Unit is a party or by
which it is bound.

(b ). There is no action, suit proceeding, or investigation at law or in equity or 
before any court, public board or body pending, or to the knowledge of the 
Governmental Unit, threatened against or affecting it that could or might 
adversely affect the Project or any of the transactions contemplated by this 
Grant Agreement, the validity or enforceability of this Grant Agreement, or 
the abilities of the Governmental Unit to discharge its obligations under this 
Grant Agreement. If it is subsequently found that an action, suit, 
proceeding, or investigation did or could threaten or affect the development 
of the Project, the Governmental Unit shall be liable to Commerce for 
repayment of the entire amount of the Grant and this Grant Agreement may 
be terminated by Commerce effective upon notice. 

(c). No consent or approval is necessary from any governmental authority as a 
condition to the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement by the 
Governmental Unit or the performance of any of its obligations hereunder, 
or all such requisite governmental consents or approvals have been 
obtained. The Governmental Unit shall provide Commerce with evidence 
of the existence of any such necessary consents or approvals at the time of 
the execution of this Grant Agreement. 

(d). The Governmental Unit is solvent. 

(f). The Governmental Unit shall comply with all applicable environmental 
laws, rules, regulations and requirements and this Grant Agreement is made 
contingent upon a certification from the North Carolina Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources that the proposed project will not have 
a significant adverse effect on the environment. 

7 Town of Granite Quarry Page 75 Printed on 5/8/2019



13. Additional Repayment Requirements and Remedies.

(a). The repayment requirements and remedies addressed in this Paragraph 13 
are in addition to those repayment requirements and other remedies set forth 
elsewhere in this Grant Agreement, including the requirements to repay 
unspent Grant funds. No remedy conferred or reserved by or to the State is 
intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each 
and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy provided for in this Grant Agreement, or now or hereinafter 
existing at law, in equity, or by statute, and any such right or power may be 
exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

(b ). If there is a breach of any of the requirements, covenants or agreements in 
this Grant Agreement, or if there are any representations or warranties 
which are untrue as to a material fact in this Grant Agreement, or in relation 
to the Project (including the performance thereof), the Governmental Unit 
agrees that Commerce may require repayment from the Governmental Unit 
of an amount of Grant funds to be determined in Commerce's sole 
discretion but not to exceed the amount of Grant funds the Governmental 
Unit has already received under this Grant Agreement. Such requirements, 
covenants or agreements include but are not limited to Paragraphs 1, 2(a), 
4, 9, l0(a), 12 of this Grant Agreement. 

14. No Waiver by the State. Failure of the State (including, without limitation, the
Rural Authority and Commerce) at any time to require performance of any term or
provision of this Grant Agreement shall in no manner affect the rights of the State
at a later date to enforce the same or to enforce any future compliance with or
performance of any of the terms or provisions hereof. No waiver of the State of
any condition or the breach of any term, provision or representation contained in
this Grant Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more
instances, shall be deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing waiver of
any such condition or of the breach of that or any other term, provision or
representation.

15. Waiver of Objections to Timeliness of Legal Action. The Governmental Unit
knowingly waives any objections it has or may have to timeliness of any legal
action (including any administrative petition or civil action) by the State (including,
without limitation, the Rural Authority or Commerce) to enforce its rights under
this Grant Agreement. This waiver includes any objections the Governmental Unit
may possess based on the statutes of limitations or repose and the doctrines of
estoppel or !aches.

8 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 76 Printed on 5/8/2019



16. Special Provisions and Conditions.

(a). Non-discrimination. The Governmental Unit agrees not to discriminate by 
reason of age, race, religion, color, sex, national origin or disability related 
to the activities of this Grant Agreement. 

(b). Conflict of Interest. The Governmental Unit shall forward to Commerce 
along with the executed copies ofthis Grant Agreement a copy of its policy 
and any ordinance or resolution it has adopted addressing conflicts of 
interest that may arise involving the members of the Governmental Unit's 
governing body and/or any of its employees or officers involved in the 
Grant or the Project. Such policy, ordinance or resolution shall address 
situations in which any of these individuals may directly or indirectly 
benefit, other than through receipt of their normal compensation in their 
capacities as the Governmental Unit's employees, officers or members of 
its governing body, from the Grant or Project, and shall include actions to 
be taken by the Unit or the individual, or both, to avoid conflicts of interest 
and the appearance of impropriety. Additionally, the Governmental Unit 
certifies that, as of the date it executes this Grant Agreement, no such 
individuals have such a conflict of interest or will directly or indirectly 
benefit, except in the capacities described above, from the Grant or Project. 
Throughout the duration of this Grant Agreement and the Project, the 
Governmental Unit has the duty to promptly inform Commerce of any such 
conflict of interest or direct or indirect benefit of which it becomes aware. 

(c). Compliance with Laws. The Governmental Unit shall at all times observe 
and comply with all laws, regulations, codes, rules, ordinances and other 
requirements (together, "Laws") of the State, federal and local governments 
which may in any manner affect the performance of the Grant Agreement 
or the Project. 

(d). Non-Assignability. The Governmental Unit shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Grant Agreement without the prior written consent of 
Commerce; provided, however, that claims for money due to the 
Governmental Unit from Commerce under this Agreement may be assigned 
to any commercial bank or other financial institution without such approval. 

(e). Personnel. The Governmental Unit represents that it has, or will secure at 
its own expense, all personnel required to monitor, carry out and perform 
the scope of services of this Agreement. Such employees shall not be 
employees of Commerce. Such personnel shall be fully qualified and shall 
be authorized under State and local law to perform such services. 

(f) Obligations of Recipient with respect to Certain Third Party Relationships.
Commerce shall hold the Governmental Unit responsible for complying

9 Town of Granite Quarry Page 77 Printed on 5/8/2019



with the provisions of this agreement even when the Governmental Unit 
designates a third party or parties to undertake all or any part of the Project. 

17. Notice. All notices required or permitted to be delivered hereunder and all
communications in respect hereof shall be in writing and shall be deemed given
when personally delivered or when deposited in the United States mails, certified,
return receipt requested, first class, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the Rural Authority or Commerce: Attn: Mark N. Poole 

If to the Governmental Unit: 

301 N. Wilmington Street 
4318 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-4318 

Attn: The Honorable William D. Feather 
Mayor, Town of Granite Quarry 
P.O. Box 351 
Granite Quarry, NC 28072-0351 

or addressed to such other address or to the attention of such other individual as 
Commerce or the Governmental Unit shall have specified in a notice delivered 
pursuant to this subsection. 

18. Entire Agreement. This Grant Agreement supersedes all prior agreements between
or among the Rural Authority and/or Commerce-and the Governmental Unit with
regard to the Project and expresses their entire understanding with respect to the
transactions contemplated herein, and shall not be amended, modified or altered
except pursuant to a writing signed by both Commerce and the Governmental Unit.

19. Execution. This Grant Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which, when executed, shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts,
together, shall constitute one and the same Grant Agreement which shall be
sufficiently evidenced by one of such original counterparts.

20. Construction, Jurisdiction and Venue. This Grant Agreement shall be construed
and governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. The Governmental Unit
agrees and submits, solely for matters concerning this Grant Agreement, to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of North Carolina and agrees, solely for such
purposes, that the only venue for any legal proceedings shall be Wake County,
North Carolina. The place of this Grant Agreement, and all transactions and
agreements relating to ir, and their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, North
Carolina, where all matters, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise,
relating to its validity, construction, interpretation, and enforcement, shall be
determined.

21. Severability. Each provision of this Grant Agreement is intended to be severable
and, if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or

10 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 78 Printed on 5/8/2019



unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not 
affect or impair any other provision of this Grant Agreement, but this Grant 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision 
had not been contained herein. 

22. Acceptance. If the Governmental Unit agrees to the Grant conditions as stated,
please return the executed documents specified in Paragraph l(a). This Grant may
be withdrawn if Commerce has not received such documents within thirty (30) days
from the date of the cover letter from Commerce to the Governmental Unit
accompanying this Grant Agreement.

IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Grant
Agreement under seal as of the date first above written. 

Town of Granite Quarry 

By: [SEAL] 

Title: 
-----------------

Date: 
-----------------

North Carolina Department of Commerce 

By ��r_s _____ _
[SEAL] 

Title: Assistant Secretary, Rural Economic 
Development Division 

Date: � / L..'Z..lf 4f 
--4--1-, --1-, �-------

11 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 79 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 80 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 81 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 82 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 83 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 84 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 85 Printed on 5/8/2019



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Monthly Meeting 
May 6, 2019 
Agenda Item 7J Boards and Committees 

Appointment - PERC 

Summary 

Lindsey Eller expressed an interest in joining the PERC 
Committee.  

Attachment 

Boards and Committees application submitted by Lindsey Eller. 

Action Requested 

Motion to appoint Lindsey Eller to the PERC Committee. 

Motion Made By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Second By: 

Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 

Jim LaFevers 

John Linker 

In case of tie: 

Mayor Bill Feather 

For             

Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 86 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 87 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry Page 88 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry 
Office of the Mayor 

Whereas, the 68th observance of the National Day of Prayer was held on Thursday, May 2, 
2019, with the theme “Love One Another” based on John 13:34, “A new commandment I give 
unto you, that ye ‘love one another’; as I have loved you, that ye also love another.”; and

Whereas, a National Day of Prayer has been part of our national heritage since it was declared 
by the First Continental Congress in 1775 and the United States Congress in 1952 approved it as 
a Joint Resolution, “That the President shall set aside and proclaim a suitable day each year, other 
than a Sunday, as a National Day of Prayer, on which all the people of the United States may turn 
to God in prayer and meditation at places worship, in groups and as individuals”; and 

Whereas, the United States Congress, in 1988 by Public Law 100-307, as amended, establishes, 
“An act to provide for setting aside the first Thursday in May as the date on which the National 
Day of Prayer is celebrated,” and 

Whereas, leaders and citizens of our communities, cities, states and nations are afforded the 
privilege of prayer with the joy of seeking divine guidance, strength, protection and comfort from 
the Almighty God; and 

Whereas, the citizens of Granite Quarry recognize the importance of the freedom to gather in 
prayer, exercising reliance on God’s power in the face of present challenges and threats, asking 
for His blessing on every individual in our town; and 

Now, Therefore, I, WILLIAM D. FEATHER, by virtue of the authority vested in me  
as Mayor of the town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina, do hereby proclaim that May 2, 2019 be 
recognized as the 2019 National Day of Prayer. 

Duly adopted this the 6th day of May, 2019. 

________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
     Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk, CMC

Town of Granite Quarry Page 89 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry 
Office of the Mayor 

Whereas, dedicated law enforcement officers work with courage and commitment in protecting 
citizens and neighborhoods against crime, violence and terrorism, and we rely on them for the 
safety and well-being of ourselves and our families; and
 

Whereas, since the first recorded police death in the United States in 1791, there have been 
21,541 names of law enforcement officers engraved on the walls of the National Law Enforcement 
Officers Memorial located at Judiciary Square in Washington, D.C.; and 

Whereas, in 1962, the late United States President John F. Kennedy signed into law a bill 
proclaiming May 15th of each year to be named as Peace Officers Memorial Day and the week in 
which it falls as Police Week, a time of mourning for police officers killed in the line of duty and 
recognition of others who were injured protecting our citizens from harm; and 

Whereas, the members of our law enforcement agency of Granite Quarry play an essential 
role in safeguarding the rights and freedom of our town; and 

Whereas, throughout our nation, approximately 900,000 sworn law enforcement officers 
will participate in this official period of mourning. 

Now, Therefore, I, WILLIAM D. FEATHER, Mayor of the Town of Granite Quarry, 
North Carolina call upon our citizens and all patriotic, civic, and educational organizations 
to observe the week of May 12 – 18, 2019 as National Police Week recognizing all law 
enforcement officers, past and present, who, by their faithful and loyal devotion to their 
responsibilities have rendered a dedicated service to their communities. 

I further call upon all citizens to observe May 15, 2019 as “Peace Officers’ Memorial Day” 
to honor our law enforcement officers who have the ultimate sacrifice in service to their 
community or have been disabled in the performance of their duties, and let us recognize 
and pay respect to the survivors of our fallen heroes. 

Duly adopted this the 6th day of May, 2019. 

________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
     Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk, CMC

Town of Granite Quarry Page 90 Printed on 5/8/2019



Town of Granite Quarry 
Office of the Mayor 

Whereas, mental health is an essential part of overall health, and it is vital that each 
individual has equal opportunity for early access to screening, assessment and referral to treatment, 
and individuals with mental illness and their families need to stay informed so that they can 
exercise choice over their care decisions; and

Whereas, mental illness including major depression, schizophrenia, and disorders such 
as bipolar, obsessive, compulsive, severe anxiety, borderline personality and post-traumatic stress 
affects approximately one in four people worldwide at some point in life, and it touches all ages, 
genders, races and nationalities in every community; and 

Whereas, lack of available mental health treatment can increase and complicate an 
individual’s symptoms, and could lead to chronic medical conditions, unnecessary disability, 
unemployment, substance abuse, homelessness, inappropriate incarceration, and suicide; and 

Whereas, effective methods for reducing the stigma and isolation associated with mental 
illness are accomplished by building awareness and understanding of mental illness, increasing 
access to treatment and ensuring families who are struggling know that they are not alone in their 
journeys; and 

Whereas, annually Mental Health Month is observed during the month of May to raise 
awareness about mental illness, the importance of early detection and accurate diagnosis, and to 
reduce the stigma and misunderstandings associated with mental illness. 

Now, Therefore, I, WILLIAM D. FEATHER, by virtue of the authority vested in 
me as Mayor of the town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina, do hereby proclaim May 2019 as 

“MENTAL HEALTH MONTH” 

Duly adopted this the 6th day of May, 2019. 

________________________________ 
William D. Feather, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
     Tanya Maria Word, Town Clerk, CMC

Town of Granite Quarry Page 91 Printed on 5/8/2019


	Agenda for May 6 2019 Meeting
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES 040119 DRAFT ACS
	Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Alderman John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, and Alderman Kim Cress
	Attended Remotely via Conference Call:  Mayor Pro Tem Jim LaFevers
	Staff:  Mr. Larry Smith – Interim Town Manager, Ms. Tanya Word – Town Clerk/HR Officer, Ms. Aubrey Smith – Deputy Clerk/Finance/HR Analyst, Chief Jason Hord – Fire Chief/Maintenance Supervisor, Ms. Shelly Shockley – Finance Officer/Planning Coordinato...
	Guests:  There were three guests present.
	1. Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	2. Moment of Silence:  Mayor Feather opened the meeting with a moment of silence.
	3. Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Feather led the Pledge of Allegiance.
	4. Approval of the Agenda:
	ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve the agenda with the March 4, 2019 Board Minutes, February 22, 2019 Retreat Minutes and Financial Reports pulled and an addition of the Village at Granite Bond Discussion added to the Manager’s Repor...
	5. Approval of the Consent Agenda:
	a. Approval of the Minutes
	 Regular Board Minutes March 4, 2019- pulled for changes, added back as an action in 8c.
	 Board of Aldermen Retreat Minutes February 22, 2019- pulled for changes, added back as an action in 8c.
	b. Department Reports
	c. Financial Reports-pulled for discussion, added back with Board’s approval in 8c. (see 9d for discussion)
	ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem LaFevers made a motion to accept the consent agenda less the items pulled.  Alderman Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.
	6. Citizen Comments:  There were no citizen comments.
	ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Alderman Cress seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor.
	The meeting was adjourned at 8:49 p.m.

	FIRE DEPARTMENT APRIL 2019 REPORT
	MAINTENANCE REPORT APRIL 2019
	PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT FOR 5.6.19 BOA MEETING
	POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT APRIL 2019
	POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT APRIL 2019 - FAITH
	POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT APRIL 2019 - GRANITE QUARRY
	FINANCE REPORT APRIL 2019
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 4 - GUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 5 - TOWN MANAGER UPDATE AND REPORT
	Agenda Item 6B- Summary FY18-19 Paving-Repair Project 05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Summary FY18-19 Paving-Repair Project 05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment A 05062019
	Sheet1

	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment B1  05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment B2  05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment B3  05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment B4    05062019
	Agenda Item 7 - Attachment B5    05062019

	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7A -  RESOLUTION 2019-09 NEW COPIER
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7C - Poultry Waste Storage in ETJ
	AGENDA ITEM 7D -  316 S MAIN STREET AGREEMENT
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7E - BUDGET AMENDMENT 15
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7F - BUDGET AMENDMENT 16
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7G - VEETERANS MEMORIAL
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7H - DISPOSAL OF POLICE VEHICLE
	AGENDA ITEM 7I - BUDGET WORKSHOP
	AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 7J- BOARDS AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION - PERC COMMITTEE
	BOARD AND COMMITTEES APPLICATION - LINDSEY ELLER 050619
	PROCLAMATION - National Day of Prayer 2019
	PROCLAMATION - National Police Week 2019
	PROCLAMATION - Mental Health Month 2019



